
 

 

ESSEX COUNTY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MEETING OF APRIL 24, 2025, AT 7:00 P.M. 

109 CROSS STREET 
TAPPAHANNOCK, VIRGINIA 22560 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 
Steven Laffoon- Chairman 
Stephen Walters – Vice Chairman 
Edward Haile 
Ned Stephenson 
 
Absent: 
 
Gam Rose 
 
Also Present: 
 
Kelly McKnight          - Building and Zoning Office Manager 
Brian Barnes              - Director of Building and Zoning 
April Rounds              - County Administrator 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairman Steven Laffoon called the April 24, 2025, meeting of the Essex County Board of 
Zoning Appeals to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Ms. McKnight called the roll. A quorum was met. 
 
Meeting Agenda 
 
Mr. Ed Haile asked if he could make a request to move the Wood case before the VanHuss case 
because he would have to recuse himself from the VanHuss case because they are neighbors 
and friends of his?  He said that we would still have a quorum. 
 
Mr. Brian Barnes came forward and said he has two things to say about that. The applicant for 
the Wood/Moore case requested to go second and it would be nice to honor their wishes.  In 
reference to the recusal, Mr. Barnes said just remember that you would have to have a positive 
vote of three members for any request to pass because you are down one person.  Three is still 
a quorum, but if it is a two to one vote it will still be a failure of that motion.  Mr. Barnes said 
his recommendation of that nature with parliamentary procedure is you’re not necessarily 



 

 

allowed to take test votes, but I have always recommended to boards and commissions over 
the years, if you feel something is about to be denied then go ahead and table it then that way 
this person has a chance at a prevailing vote.  
 
Mr. Haile said with that he will withdraw and wait elsewhere, and someone notify him when he 
can come back in.  
 
Chairman Laffoon asked the board if they had any comments on tabling the matter?  No 
comments made.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Chairman Laffoon asked if there were any changes or modifications to the December 12, 2024, 
minutes? Mr. Haile made a motion to accept the minutes as presented. Mr. Stephen Walters 
seconded the motion. AYES: 4  NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 
 
Application #V2500003 – Timothy D. VanHuss 
 
Mr. Brian Barnes came forward and presented the first case. Application for Bay Act Exception 
and Variance #V2500003 submitted by Timothy D. Vanhuss c/o J.L. Howeth P.C. for an exception 
and a variance on a property located off Greenfield Rd, Tax Map# 20-8A, consisting of ± 3.45 
acres. The property is zoned A-1, Agriculture and Forestry, Preservation, and within the 
Agricultural Preservation District. The request is for an exception from the 100’ Resource 
Protection Area requirement as required by Article IV, Division 5, Chesapeake Bay Preservation 
Area Overlay District, Section 36.276 of the Essex County Zoning Ordinance and a variance for 
encroachment in the 30’ side yard setback as required by Article IV, Section 36.221 of the Essex 
County Zoning Ordinance in order to permit the construction of an above ground pool with steps 
and filter with 908 square feet of proposed impervious cover encroachment in the RPA buffer 
with the required mitigation.   
 
Mr. Jeff Howeth, the agent for Mr. VanHuss came forward and said he didn’t have anything to 
add to what Mr. Barnes presented.  
 
Mr. Timothy VanHuss came forward and said that they are just trying to replace a pool that they 
have had established for about fifteen years.  They want a pool to use for his daughter and wife.  
 
Mr. Ned Stephenson asked Mr. Barnes if he has made a decision on this as to whether it is 
compliant or not?  
 
Mr. Barnes said that it is consistent with the mitigation required and it’s sealed.  He said that we 
have several right now that are going back and forth with us at staff level and a lot of them don’t 
want to have it engineered and they don’t want to have the components that you see here.  If 
you look in our Bay Act ordinance it will show you what is required.  
 



 

 

Mr. Stephenson asked Mr. Barnes why did you bring it here and not approve it?  He said he was 
under the impression that it would come to the board if the decision that Mr. Barnes made was 
not satisfactory.  That the applicants would be appealing Mr. Barnes’s decision.  
 
Mr. Barnes said that  in ordinance you can declare that the BZA will handle that job just like you 
all handle appeals for flood zone regulations.  Your body is tasks with those certain 
responsibilities because you are appointed by the Circuit Court Judge.  Mr. Barnes said that there 
is just one paragraph in the Bay Act regulations where it says exceptions .  Those exceptions 
regarding Chesapeake Bay Act exceptions shall be heard by the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Yes, 
you do hear appeals from Zoning Administrators’ decisions, but you also will issue waivers, 
variances and some exceptions. 
 
Mr. Stephenson asked Mr. Barnes to cite to him the reference and the ordinance that describes 
that because everything that he is reading in the ordinance says that the appeal comes to us 
when you made a decision that the applicant is aggrieved with.  
 
Mr. Barnes read section 36.276.   
 
Section 36.276. — Exceptions (Variances).  Exceptions Affecting RPA. Any exception or variance 
to the requirements those exceptions dealing with RPA issues, shall be reviewed and considered 
by the Board of Zoning Appeals of Essex County. The request for an exception shall identify the 
impacts of the proposed exception on water quality and on lands within the RPA through the 
performance of a WQIA which complies with Section 36.272.   
 
Mr. Barnes said that when you read section 36.272 it talks about having a stamped,  sealed plan 
by a Class B surveyor or professional engineer. Mr. Barnes said that it is one paragraph and that 
is why you are here.  
 
The other question that Mr. Stephenson had was whether or not there is space available on the 
parcel to place the swimming pool without having it in the buffer? 
 
Mr. Barnes said that is a decision that he doesn’t have to make because he is not the property 
owner.  That is up to the applicant and the applicant’s agent to prove to you why it goes where 
it goes.  
 
Chairman Laffoon asked if the adjacent property  owners were notified? 
 
Mr. Barnes said yes, they were. 
 
Mr. Stephenson wanted to know if there was any response to the letter. 
 
Building and Zoning Office manager Kelly McKnight said that Todd Thompson called and wanted 
the application and plans.  He didn’t say anything about being against it.  
 



 

 

Chairman Laffoon opened up the hearing for the public to speak.   No one commented. 
 
Chairman Laffoon closed the public hearing portion.  
 
Motion 1: Vice Chairman Walters made the motion to approve the variance to the side setback 
30’ to 10’. Seconded by Mr. Stephenson.  AYES: 3 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 RECUSAL: 1 
 
Motion 2: Vice Chairman Walters made the motion to approve the CBPA exception, contingent 
on placement of the vegetative mitigation more spread within the RPA.  Seconded by Mr. 
Stephenson.  AYES: 3 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 RECUSAL: 1 
 
Application #V2500002 – Cathy Wood and Stanley Moore 
 
Mr. Barnes came forward and introduced the next case. Application for Bay Act Exception 
#V2500002 submitted by Cathy Wood and Stanley Moore c/o  J.L. Howeth P.C. for an exception 
on a property located off Iris Ln, Tax Map# 61-28, consisting of ± 1.80 acres. The property is zoned 
A-2, Agriculture and Forestry, General, and within the Countryside District. The request is for an 
exception from the 100’ Resource Protection Area requirement as required by Article IV, Division 
5, Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area Overlay District, Section 36.276 of the Essex County Zoning 
Ordinance in order to permit the use of a drainage pipe in the RPA buffer as a part of the 
Stormwater Best Management Practice Plan. 
 
Mr. Barnes said that there are certain things with the Chesapeake Bay Act that can be approved 
administratively in the office.  If you have existing structures that you need to move around in 
the 100’ buffer if they meet certain requirements, they don’t need to come to the BZA.  
Completely new structures that are hard and permanent that are within the 100’ buffer, they 
come to the BZA.  That is why you will be hearing this case.  This particular plan offers the use of 
offsite compliance, and I know there will be several questions about that.  Mr. Barnes read to the 
BZA state regulations found in 9VAC25-830-140, which is the  criteria that the applicant needs to 
meet.  
 

(i) The local government has conclusively established that location of the facility within 
the Resource Protection Area is the optimum location;  
 

(ii) The size of the facility is the minimum necessary to provide necessary flood control 
or stormwater treatment, or both;  
 

(iii) The facility must be consistent with a comprehensive stormwater management plan 
developed and approved in accordance with 9VAC25-875-660;  

 
(iv) All applicable permits for construction in state or federal waters must be obtained 

from the appropriate state and federal agencies, such as the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, the department, and the Virginia Marine Resources Commission;  
 



 

 

(v) Approval must be received from the local government prior to construction; and  
 

(vi) Routine maintenance is allowed to be performed on such facilities to assure that 
they continue to function as designed. It is not the intent of this subdivision to allow 
a best management practice that collects and treats runoff from only an individual 
lot or some portion of the lot to be located within a Resource Protection Area. 

 
Mr. Barnes said the last requirement, which is number six, is why you have to have a hearing on 
this particular issue because this is not necessarily a neighborhood although one could argue 
that there is drainage coming from other lots going through it. But technically this is to serve 
this one lot and is not allowed administratively.  
 
Mr. Howeth came forward and spoke on behalf of Cathy Wood and Stanley Moore.  He spoke 
of a SEAS letter that was written to Stanley Moore. 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 
Mr. Stephenson asked Mr. Barnes if there was a WQIA in the file then he began reading from 
the ordinance.  Upon the completed review of a major WQIA, the Zoning Administrator will 
determine if the proposed development is consistent with the purpose and intent of this Article 
and make a finding based upon the following criteria in conjunction with Section 36.273.  He 
wants to know if Mr. Barnes has made that finding? 
 
Mr. Barnes said no because it is an item that goes to you. You have had the WQIA before but 
that is not germane to what you are looking at now.   You are looking at an exception for the 
structure itself.   
 
Mr. Stephenson then read again “the Zoning Administrator will determine if the proposed 
development is consistent and will make a finding” and he is interested in his finding.  
 
Mr. Barnes asked Mr. Stephenson what section are you reading from? 
 
Mr. Stephenson said the bottom of page 59. 
 
Mr. Barnes said that is for administrative approval. This is not an administrative approval.  
 
Mr. Stephenson said that it does not say that.  Mr. Stephenson said it is his understanding that 
we hear your finding and it’s up to us to decide whether it is correct or not.  
 
Mr. Barnes said in cases of appeals of the Zoning Administrator’s decision that is true.  
 
Mr. Stephenson said that he was reading in his letter from back in July about the WQIA and he 
recited it is the formal determination of staff that the impact this project proposes within the 
100’ buffer fails to meet the criteria and Mr. Stephenson said that he is taking that as his 
finding. 



 

 

Mr. Barnes said that the criteria for administrative approval and that if you continue reading 
that letter it directed the applicant to come to the BZA for a Bay Act Special exception so that 
staff could then approve the Erosion and Sediment Control portion and then allow the building 
permits to be issued. 
 
Mr. Stephenson said that he is still hung up on the fact that Mr. Barnes is supposed to tell them 
what his finding is.  
 
Mr. Barnes said I believe that I told you that back in July and the applicant has come to you in 
that direction.   The part that you do will be to take that WQIA and the engineered plan and 
make a decision with the section E that I just read about where you look at what is the structure 
doing, what is the drainage doing, what is the whole plan for the site, is it necessary  and then 
try to make your decision based on that.  Mr. Barnes said in this case you are doing my job 
because this is no longer an administrative function, it is much higher than that.   
 
Mr. Stephenson said that he is struggling with another paragraph. “ A decision or interpretation 
of the Zoning Administrator shall be presumed correct and may not be reversed or modified 
unless there is evidence in the record that the decision is incorrect.” 
 
Mr. Barnes said and that is true as well. 
 
Mr. Stephenson said that what he is seeing here is that you have reviewed this and have 
determined that it doesn’t pass? That it is not sufficient. 
 
Mr. Barnes said “no, I have determined that it would not be able to be administratively 
approved.” Mr. Barnes said in general it is stamped engineer plans and is supposed to be 
generally correct. He said to Mr. Stepheson that he is correct that the Zoning Administrator’s 
determination was done and made, and enough time has passed that is set.  However,  it was a 
decision based on whether we could administratively approve it or not.  
 
Mr. Stephenson then asked, “is it your finding that this is consistent with the regulations?” “ Yes 
or no?”  
 
Mr. Barnes said as your staff person who looks at this stuff day in and day out you look for 
elements.  You have structural elements, you have vegetative elements, you have distance from 
the resource, you have proposed development on a property.  You cannot have a taking 
without compensation so private property that somebody owns they are allowed to develop it 
within reasonable parameters. The fact that it is on the water, this parcel was created long ago.  
The purpose of the regulations is to allow them to do that in a way that it doesn’t adversely 
impact water quality because the water belongs to everyone. The idea is that those calculations 
prove that there is no net detriment to the water quality.  If that is shown and stamped and 
sealed then that’s meeting the Bay Act requirements.  
 
Mr. Stephenson asked, “is that your finding?” 



 

 

Mr. Barnes said, “that is my finding.” It has to meet the bullet points which it does.   It does 
meet the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Haile said to him it seems like this is major because a pipe is in the 50’ easement, that’s a 
permanent structure in the 50’ RPA. Mr. Haile wanted to know what was the hang up with 
installing a pipe?  
 
Chairman Laffoon opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
An adjacent property owner, Mrs. Brown, came forward and she said that her concern was the 
drainage pipe. She wanted to know where that was in relation to her property line?  Is it a 
setback from our property line? She came forward and looked at the plan.  
 
Mr. Walters showed her the plans and said that if he had to guess it would be about 20’ from 
her property line.  
 
Mr. Howeth came forward to explain to Ms. Brown also and he said that it is probably 26’ or 27’ 
from the property line.  
 
Chairman Laffoon closed the public comment portion of the hearing.  
 
Mr. Stephenson made a motion to approve an exception to the requirements to the RPA as 
requested by Mrs. Wood according to the plans that she presented.  
 
Chairman Laffoon wanted to add an amendment to the motion.  
 
Mr. Stephenson said we would need a second before adding the amendment.  
 
Mr. Haile seconded Mr. Stephenson’s motion.  
 
Chairman Laffoon said that he would like to now add an amendment.  He wanted to have some 
of the figures checked a little bit and that it take no longer than ten days. He would like to have 
that put into the motion and that way since it is the first time doing one like this, it can set a 
precedent.   
 
Mr. Stepheson added that we have a professional engineer who has provided this and if there is 
any lack of trust what he has done. Mr. Stephenson said that he trusts the engineering work on 
his face, and I am happy to move along with it “checked.”  
 
Chairman Laffoon said that he will withdraw his part of it.   
 
Mr. Stephenson said that he will accept the amendment.  
 



 

 

Mr. Walters said that he will offer up a second amendment which is that the final plans for the 
actual structure be compliant with the current A-2 zoning.  
 
Mr. Stephenson said that he understands that and said that is not before us today. The only 
thing before us is the encroachment in the buffer and we need to say yes or no. 
 
Ms. April Rounds, County Administrator, said that the second amendment that was seconded is 
still open.  You can either call for a second or withdraw that, then it will fall back to the one that 
Mr. Laffoon made.  
 
Vice Chairman Walters withdrew his amendment about the A-2. 
 
Ms. Rounds told Mr. Laffoon that it is up to the board and that there is still a motion on the 
floor that you can now discuss, vote on or withdraw.  
 
Chairman Laffoon called for a vote on the amendment of having it checked.  AYES: 2 NAYES: 2 
ABSENT: 0. The motion failed.  
 
Mr. Stephenson made a motion to approve an exception to the requirements of the RPA as 
requested by Mrs. Wood and Mr. Moore according to the plans they presented.  The motion 
was already seconded by Mr. Haile previously.  AYES: 4 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 0 
 
Adjournment 
 
Chairman Laffoon adjourned the meeting at 9:39 PM. 
 
 
 
__________________________________       
Steven Laffoon - Chairman 
 


